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The Denmark Congregational Church is a two-story structure of brick laid in stretcher 
bond. Its most prominent feature is the truncated, crenellated square tower, which 
rises out of the pedimented vestibule. Fenestration at ground level features paired, 
4/4-light windows with heavy, flat, rectangular stone lintels. All other openings 
have round arches. Windows in the three-bay side elevations on the upper (sanctuary) 
level feature paired lights, tall, slender and round-arched, with a round window 
above, and wooden hoodmolds. Smaller-scale versions of these are repeated in the 
sides of the entrance pavilion. The round arch theme is found again in the louvred 
openings on each face of the belltower, with brick hoods.

In 1871, the tower was finished with a tall, slender spire. A windstorm took it 
down in 1953 and it was not replaced. Instead, the base was crenellated at the 
top. A small frame vestibule on the east side was replaced (date unknown) with 
a brick vestibule of about the same size; it is crenellated to match the top of 
the tower. One of two brick chimneys, located at the southwest and southeast 
corners, has also been removed.

To the west side is a one-story brick education wing, built in 1958. Like many 
additions of this type, it is strictly functional, having no design relationship 
to the church itself.

The interior of the church is extremely plain, with plastered walls and low, 
modern ceiling panels. The only decorative elements are the round-headed window 
shapes. Wooden pews are original, painted white with dark trim.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This structure was the last church of the Reverend Asa Turner, Jr. (1799-1886), known 
as the "Founder of Iowa Congregationalism" and a follower of the Jacksonian-era reform 
sentiments most notably expressed through the temperance and abolitionist movements. 
The present structure, built 1863-4, is the third to house the Congregational is t 
parishioners of Denmark, Iowa since the denomination's establishment here about 1836. 
The first church was erected at this site in 1845, replaced later by a brick building 
which burned in 1861.

Asa Turner's early missionary experiences, as a graduate of Yale Theological Seminary 
and agent for the American Home Missionary Society, were in Illinois, to which he 
came with other Yale seminarians in 1830. His first congregation was formed in 
December of that year, in Quincy. However, as an outspoken abolitionist, Turner 
gradually became unpopular in southern Illinois; in 1838 he answered the call of 
the Congregational,Church at Denmark, which he then served for thirty years.

Turner combined home missionary work and social reform with his local ministry. From 
1840 to 1845, he travelled around his "territory", which then included both the 
Black Hawk (1832) and Second (1837) Purchases. Turner's frequent requests to the 
American Home Missionary Society for more ministers was answered most notably in 1843, 
when nine young men from the conservative Congregationalist Andover Theological 
Seminary arrived in Denmark. Known in Iowa history as the "Iowa Band", in emulation 
of the earlier "Yale Band" in Illinois, these missionaries established churches 
around eastern Iowa, using Turner's Denmark church as their model.

In 1838, a temperance society was formed at Denmark in celebration of the 4th of 
July. The following year, Asa Turner successfully urged the establishment of a 
state temperance society at the then territorial capital of Burlington. In aboli­ 
tionist matters he was extremely active: anti-slavery resolutions promulgated in 
1843 and 1846 by the General Assembly of Congregational Churches and Ministers in 
the State of Iowa numbered Turner among their authors. Extending the struggle 
for social reform into government, Turner worked energetically for Whig gubernatorial 
candidate James M. Grimes in 1854. As chairman of the platform committee for that 
year's convention of "Abolitionists, Liberty Party men, and Free Soilers", he 
ensured Grimes' selection by a group which was to form the nucleus of the Republican 
Party in Iowa a few years later.

Turner retired from the ministry in 1868. His tetirement was spent in California, 
and then in Oskaloosa, with his daughters.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Lots 1 and 6, and east half of lots 2 and 5, Block 12, original plat of Denmark, 
Iowa.
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